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" am = ASA Philippines Foundation
@JS dJ  For The Poor With Heartfelt Dedication

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Managemenr of ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE
MNGO), 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentanon of the financial starements,
including the schedules attached therein, for the vears ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 in
accordance with the prescnbed financial repornng framework mdicated therein, and for such
internal control as management determines 15 necessary 1o enable the preparanon of fAnancial
statements that are free from maredal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In prepanng the financial statements, management 1s responsible for assessing the Foundanon’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accountng unless management either ntends to liquidate
the Foundanon or to cease operations, or has no realisnc alternative ro do so.

The Board of Trastees 15 responsible for ov L‘te;:_*t:ing the Foundauon’s financial repﬂrdl‘!g process,

The Board of Trustees reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules
attached therein, and submits the same to the members.

P&A Grant Thomton, the independent auditors appointed by the members, has audired the
financial starements of the Foundavon n accordance with Philippine Srandards on Audinng, and
in their report to the members, have cxpnrh‘h‘:::_{ their opinton on the faimess of presentanon
{IPDﬂ C{]!T!P]L‘T.I(}H t‘Ji‘ ﬁLH:Ll ﬂ.LI.d.“-
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And, Lo~

KAMRUL H. TARAFER FLORINDA M, I:tCANLALﬁY
Preswdent & CEO I reasurer

T L

EDWARD S/GO

Chairman

15th Floor Prestige Tower F. Ortigas Jr. Road Ortigas Center Pasig City 1605, Philippines
Phone: +(632) 6877558 Telefax: +(632) 6311107 Website: www.asaphil.org
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Punongbayan & Aroullo
20th Floor, Tower 1

The Enterprize Center
G766 hyolo Avenue

1200 Makati City
Philippines

Report of Independent Auditors

T+463 2988 2288

The Board of Trustees

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO)
{A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

15" Floor Prestige Tower, F. Ortigas Jr. Street

Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance
NGQ) [the Foundation], which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31,
2018 and 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in fund
balance and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Foundation as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA). Qur
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of cur report. We are independent of the
Foundation in accordance with the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the
Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audits of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with PFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or emor,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Foundation's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
geing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess management either
intends to liquidate the Foundation or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Foundation's financial
reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasocnable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisicns of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional jJudgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Foundation’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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» Caonclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Foundation's
ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Foundation to cease to continue as a
going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
inciuding the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internai control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information for the year ended December 31,
2018 required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue as disclosed in Note 19 to the financial
statements is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements prepared in accordance with PFRS. Such supplementary
information is the responsibility of management. The supplementary information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole.

PUNONGEAYAN & ARAULLO

CPA Reg. No, 0090741
TIN 109-228-427
PTR No. 7333888, January 3, 2019, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation
Partner - No. 0385-AR-3 (until May 198, 2019)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar. 26, 2021)
BIR AN DB-002511-18-2018 (until Jan. 25, 2021)
Firm's BOA/PRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 {until Jul. 24, 2021)
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ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MIC
(A Nonastock, Nonprofit Organiza

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL
DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2011
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(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)| e
]
MNotes 2018 2007
ASSETS
CASH ] P 1,689,187 ,884 P 835,183,098
LOANS RECEIVABLE - Net 7 16,777,082,727 12.768,096,012
OTHER RECEIVABLES 7 114,789,788 175,602,774
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - Net B 153,651,550 134,500,200
RENTAL DEPOSITS 18 34,593,987 27,248 B30
TOTAL ASSETS P 18,769,305,936 P 13,%40,630,914
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

MICROSAVINGS 9 P 8,858,153,759 P 6775176809
LOANS PAYABLE 10 1,934,000,000 1,700,000,000
POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED

BENEFIT OBLIGATION 14 637,965,900 614,024,600
OTHER LIABILITIES 1 1,004,550,958 1,202, 764,591
TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,434,670,617 10,291,966,000
FUND BALANCE 6,334,635,319 3,648,664,914
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE P 18,769,305,936 P 13,540630,914

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE NGO)

(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

REVENUES
Service fees
Other revenues

EXPENSES
Project costs
General and administrative expenses

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss

Remeasutemnent of post-employment

defined benefit plan

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Motes 2018 2017
7 P 6,562,365,753 P 4866829377
6,7, 12 92,830,131 23, 862,502
6,655,195,884 4,890,691 B79
13
3,445,853,793 2.901,495,509
634,095,586 570,027,743
4,079,949,379 3,471,523,252
2,575,246,505 1,419,168,627
14 110,723,900 { 24,144,500 )
P 2,685,970,405 P 1,395024,127

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

See Notes ro Financial Statements.
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ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE NGO)
(A Nonsrock, Nonprofitr Organization)
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

4

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Naotes 2018 2017
GRANTS AND CONTRIBUTIONS 2 P 41,360,000 P 41,360,000
CUMULATIVE RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS
Balance at beginning of year 3,631,644,914 2,212.476,287
Excess of revenues over expenses
during the year 2,575,246,505 1,419,168,627
Balance at end of year 6,206,891,419 3,631,644.914
REMEASUREMENT OF
POST-EMPLOYMENT DEFINED
BENEFIT PLAN
Balance at beginning of year { 24,340,000) ¢ 195,500 )
Other comprehenstve income (loss)
during the year 14 110,723,900 { 24,144,500
Balance at end of year 86,383,900 { 24,340,000 )
TOTAL FUND BALANCE P 6,334,635,319 P 3,648,664,914

See Notes ro Financial Statements.




ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE NGO)

(A Noastock, Noaprofit Ogganizanion)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 and 2017

. . . -.,. . . - i p .

{Amounts in Philippine Pesos)
Muotes 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Excess of revenues over expenses before final taxes P 2,575,246,505 P 1,419,168,627
Adjustments for
Impairment loss 7,13 350,464,480 286,680,802
Interest expense 19,13, 14 146,944,016 97,567,505
Depreciation and amorization 813 55,856,492 49,031 867
Interest income from bank deposits 612 { 15,609,356 ) | 3312714 )
Excess of revenues over expenses before working capital changes 3. 112.902,137 1,847 136,087
Increase in loans receivahle {( 4356329324) |  46552348419)
Decrease (incresse) in other receivables 60,812,986 { 66,931,459 )
Increase in rental deposits ( 7.345,187) ( 5814034 )
Increase in mucrosavings 2,082.976,950 2,247 D08, 589
Increase in post-employment defined benefit obligaton 99,358,846 152,371,900
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities { 200,238,769 ) 179,521,190
Cash generated from (used in) operations 792,137,669 { 262,056,146 )
Interest received & 12 15,609,356 5312714
Cazh paid for final taxes ( JI2LETL) 1,062,543 )
MNet Cash From (Used in) Operating Activities 804,625,154 { 257,805,976 )
CASH FLOWS USED IN AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisitions of property and equipment ] ( 75,007,842) ¢ 55,949,267 )
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 10
Proceeds from loan avallments 0,000,000 1,700,000,000
Repayments of loans ( 476,000,000 ) | 770,000,000 )
Interest paid { 109,612,526 ) | 75,257,211 )
Net Cash From Financing Actvites 124,387,474 854,742 789
NET INCREASE IN CASH BE4,004,786 540,987 547
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR B35,183,098 294,195,551
CASH AT END OF YEAR P 1,689,187,884 P B35,183,098
See Notes to Financial Statements.
o b £ 7 :.}. ; £a I-I.L P, o rz;‘:’r'_'_r_'_LlE
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ASA PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION, INC. (A MICROFINANCE NGO)
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2018 AND 2017
(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

GENERAL INFORMATION
1.1 Foundadon Informaton

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO) [the Foundation or ASA]
was incorporated in the Philippines as a nonstock, nonprofit organization and
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on July 9, 2004. Its
primary purpose is to provide access to economic and financial facilities, social and
other developmental opportunities to the disadvantaged sectors including the small,
cottage and micro-entrepreneurial poor of the community to fight against poverty,
empowering them through self-employment and economic upliftment, so they may
live with dignity, and to conduct microfinance operations pursuant to Republic Act
(R.A.) No. 8425, Social Reform and Poverty Alleviation Aet.

On August 29, 2017, the Foundation’s Board of Trustees (BOT) and members
approved the change in the corporate name of the Foundation from ASA Philippines
Foundation, Inc. to ASA Philippmes Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO). For
this purpose, the Foundation’s Articles of Incorporation and By-Laws was amended
which was approved by the SEC on November 7, 2017.

The ASA Program provides:

(a) Microfinance services to qualified poor, low-income women engaged in micro and

small scale enterprises;

{b) Financial and other forms of assistance to its members in case of sickness, death
and calamities and college scholarship for deserving children of members, as part

of social services to the poor; and,

(¢) Business development services for the members to improve efficiency and
effectiveness in enterprse management.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation has 1,150 and 1,000 branches,
respectively, covering 82 provinces in the Philippines. Moreover, as of December 31,
2018, the Foundation has a total of 1,550 service points, which comprise of the
branches, 117 extension units and 283 satellite units. The Foundation has established
foothold in Luzon, Visayas and Mindanao, as it operates 590, 280 and 280 branches

therein, respectively.

The Foundation’s registered head office, which is also its principal place of business, is—

located at 15 Floor Prestige Tower, F. Ortigas Jr. Street, Cﬂt@m Em;‘%:r Pyig[.‘ﬁ:-g .
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1.2 Approval of Financial Starements

The financial statements of the Foundation as of and for the year ended December 31,
2018 (including the comparative financial statements as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2017) were authorized for issue by the Foundation’s BOT on
February 28, 2019.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these
financial statements are summarized below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements
{a) Statement of Compliance with Philippine Financial Reporiing Standards

The financial statements of the Foundation have been prepared in accordance
with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the
Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board, and approved by the
Philippine Board of Accountancy.

The financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases
specified by PFRS for each type of asset, hability, income and expense. The
measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies that
follow.

(b) Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial staternents are presented in accordance with Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 1, Presentation of Financial Statements. The Foundation presents all
items of income and expenses in a single statement of comprehensive income.

The Foundation presents a third statement of financial position as at the
beginning of the preceding period when it applies an accounting policy
retrospectively, or makes a retrospective restatement or reclassification of items
that has a material effect on the information in the financial position at the
beginning of the preceding period. The related notes to the third statement of
financial position are not required to be disclosed.

(¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

These financial statements are presented in Philippine pesos, the Foundaton’s
functional and presentation currency, and all values represent absclute amounts
except when otherwise indicated.

Items included in the financial statements of the Foundation are measured using
its functional currency. Functional currency is the primary economic
environment in which the Foundation operates.
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2.2 Adoption of New and Amended PFRS
(a) Effective in 2018 that are Relevant 1o the Foundation

The Foundation adopted for the first ime the following PFRS and annual
improvements to PFRS, which are mandatorily effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFRS 9 :  Financial Instruments

PFRS 15 :  Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
Clarifications to PFRS 15

Annual Improvements to

PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PFRS 1 (Amendments) :  First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial

Reporting Standards — Deletion of
Short-term Exemptions

Discussed below are the relevant informaton about these standards.

(i) PFRS 9, Finanaal Instruments (issued in 2014). This new standard on
financial instruments replaces PAS 39, Financal Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, and PFRS 9 issued in 2009, 2010 and 2013. This standard
contains, among others, the following:

s  three principal classification categories for financial assets based on the
business model on how an entity is managing its financial instruments,
Le., financial assets at amortized costs, fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), and fair value through other comprehensive income

(FVOC);

®  an expected credit loss (ECL) model in determining impairment of all
debt financial assets that are not measured at FVTPL, which generally
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since imitial recognition of such financial assets; and,

* 2 new model on hedge accounting that provides significant
improvements principally by aligning hedge accounting more closely
with the risk management activities undertaken by entities when hedging
their financial and non-financial risk exposures.

The Foundation’s new accounting policies relative to the adoption of
PFRS 9 is fully disclosed in Notes 2.3 and 2.6.

Effective January 1, 2018, the Company applied PFRS 9 using the
transitional relief allowed by the standard. This allows the Company not to
restate its prior periods’ financial statements. The adoption of PFRS 9 has
not resulted in any adjustment in the opening balance of Retained Earnings.



(1)

-d-

However, the adopoon of PFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the
Foundation's accounting policies for recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of
financial assets.

The adoption of PFRS 9 has not resulted to any adjustments to the carrying
amounts of the Foundation’s financial assets at the date of transition, because
the Foundation’s loans and other receivables remained to be accounted at
amortized cost, and the application of the ECL methodology based on the
stages of impairment assessment for loans and other receivables did not
result in the recognition of additional allowance for credit losses as of
January 1, 2018 [see Notes 2.3, 3.2(a) and 7].

Furthermore, the Foundation has no financial asset classified as FVTPL and
FVOCI and, there were no changes to the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities.

PERS 15, Revenne from Contract with Customers, together with the Clanfications to
PFRS 15 (berein referred to as PFRS 15). This new standard replaces

PAS 18, Revenue, and PAS 11, Construction Contracts, the related
Interpretations on revenue recognition: International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IFRIC
15, Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18, Trangfers of Assets from
Customers, and Standing Interpretations Committee 31, Revenwe — Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services. This new standard establishes a
comprehensive framework for determining when to recognize revenue and
how much revenue to recognize. The core prnciple in the said framework
is for an entity to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to the customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

The Foundation’s significant source of revenue pertain to its microfinance
activiies, which generate interest income, are assessed to be out of scope of
PFRS 15. This is presented as Service Fees in the statements of
comprehensive income.

Annual Improvements to PFRS 2014-2016 Cycle. Among the
improvements, PFRS 1 (Amendments), First-time Adaption of Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards — Deletion of Short-term Exemptions is relevant to
the Foundation but had no material impact on the Foundation’s financial
statements as these amendments merely clarify existing requirements. The
amendments removed short-term exemptions in PFRS 1 covenng PFRS 7,
Financial Instruments: Disclosures, PAS 19, Employee Benefits, and PFRS 10,
Consolidated Financial Statements, because the reporting period to which the
exemptions applied have already transpired.
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(k) Effective in 2018 but are nor Relevant to the Foundation

G

The following amendments, interpretations and annual improvements to existing
standards are mandatorily effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2018 but are not relevant to the Foundation’s financial statements:

PAS 40 (Amendments) :  Investment Property — Reclassification to
and from Investment Property

PFRE 2 (Amendments) :  Share-based Payment — Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactons

PFRS 4 (Amendments) :  Insurance Contracts — Applying PFRS 9
with PFRS 4

IFRIC 22 :  Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements to

PFRS (2014-2016 Cycle)
PAS 28 (Amendments) : Investment in Associates — Clarification on
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Classification

Effective Subsequent to 2018 but not Adapred Early

There are new PFRS, interpretation and amendments to existing standards
effective for annual periods subsequent to 2018, which are adopted by the FRSC.
Management will adopt the following relevant pronouncements in accordance
with their transitional provisions; and, unless otherwise stated, none of these are
expected to have significant impact on the Foundation’s financial statements.

(i) PAS 19 (Amendments), Employee Benefits — Plan Amendment, Curtatiment or
Settiement (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments require the
use of updated actuarial assumptions to determine current service cost and
net interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement when the ennty remeasures its net
defined benefit liability (asset).

(i) PFRS 9 (Amendments), Financal Instruments — Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation (effective from January 1, 2019). The amendments
clarify that prepayment features with negative compensation attached to
financial instruments may still qualify under the “solely payments of
principal and interests™ (SPPI) test. As such, the financial assets containing
prepayment features with negative compensation may still be classified at
amortized cost or at FVOCIL Management is currently assessing the
impact of this amendment in its financial statements.
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(i) PFRS 16, Leases (effective from Januvary 1, 2019). The new standard will

()

eventually replace PAS 17, Leases, and its related interpretation IFRIC 4,
Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease. For lessees, it requires
to account for leases “on-balance sheet” by recognizing a “nght-of-use”
asset and a lease liability. The lease Liability s initially measured as the
present value of future lease payments. For this purpose, lease payments
mnclude fixed, non-cancellable payments for lease elements, amounts due
under residual value guarantees, certain types of contingent payments and
amounts due during optional periods to the extent that extension is
reasonably certain. In subsequent periods, the “right-of-use™ asset is
accounted for similar to a purchased asset subject to depreciation or
amortization. The lease liability is accounted for similar to a financial
liability which is amortized using the effective interest method. However,
the new standard provides important reliefs or exemptions for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets. If these exemptions are used, the
accounting is similar to operating lease accounting under PAS 17 where
lease payments are recognized as expenses on & straight-line basis over the
lease term or another systematic basis (if more representative of the pattern
of the lessee’s benefit).

For lessors, lease accounting is similar to PAS 17’s approach. In particular,
the distinction between finance and operating leases is retained. The
definitions of each type of lease, and the supporting indicators of a finance
lease, are substantially stmilar to PAS 17. The basic accounting mechanics
are also similar, but with some different or more explicit guidance in few
areas. These include varable payments, sub-leases, lease modifications, the
treatment of initial direct costs and lessor disclosures.

The Foundation will elect to apply the standard to contracts that were
previously identified as leases applying PAS 17 and IFRIC 4 at the date of
initial application. Management is currently assessing the financial impact
of this new standard on the Foundation’s financial statements.

IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (effective from January 1,
2019). The interpretation provides clarification on the determination of
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates
when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments. The core principle
of the interpretation requires the Foundation to consider the probability of
the tax treatment being accepted by the taxation authority. When it is
probable that the tax treatment will be accepted, the determination of the
taxable profit, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and tax rates
shall be on the basis of the accepted tax treatment. Otherwise, the
Foundation has to use the most likely amount or the expected value,
depending on the surrounding circumstances, in determining the tax
accounts identified immediately above.

2.3 Financial Assets

Financial assets are recognized when the Foundation becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the financial instruments. For purposes of classifying financial
assets, an instrument is considered as an equity instrument if it is non-dervative and
meets the definition of equity for the issuer in accordance with the criteria of PAS 32,
Financial Instruments: Presentation. All other non-derivative financial instruments are
treated as debt mstruments.
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(a) Classification, Measurement and Reclasafication of Financtal Assets in Accordance with

PFRS 9

Financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instraments
are classified into the following categores: financial assets at amortized cost,
financial assets at FVOCI and financial assets at FVTPL. Under PFRS 9, the
classification and measurement of financial assets is driven by the Foundation’s
business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets.

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions
are met:

* the asset is held within the Foundaton’s business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in ordet to collect contractual cash flows (“hold to
collect”); and,

¢ the contracrual terms of the instrument give rise, on specified dates, to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All of the Foundation’s financial assets meet these criteria and are measured
initially at fair value plus transaction costs. These are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment in value.

The Foundation's financial assets at amortized cost are presented in the 2017
statement of financial position as Cash, Loans Receivable, Other Receivables and
Rental Deposits. Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits, which generally
earn interest at daily bank deposit rates and are subject to insignificant changes in
value.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial assets, except for those that are subsequently
identified as credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets at amortized cost,
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial
assets (after deducton of the loss allowance).

The Foundation can only reclassify financial assets if the objective of its business
model for managing those financial assets changes. Accordingly, the Foundation is
required to reclassify financial assets: (1) from amortized cost to FVTPL, if the
objective of the business model changes so that the amortized cost criteria are no
longer met; and, (i) from FVTPL to amortized cost, if the objective of the business
model changes so that the amortized cost critenia start to be met and the
characteristic of the instrument’s contractual cash flows meet the amortized cost
criteria.

A change in the objective of the Foundation’s business model will take effect only
at the beginning of the next reporting period following the change in the business
model.
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(&) Classification, Measurement and Reclassification of Financial Assets in Accordance with

(¢)

EAS 39

Financial assets are assigned to different categories by management on initial
recogmition, depending on the purpose for which the investments were acquired and
their characteristics. Financial assets other than those designated and effective as
hedging instruments are classified into the following categories: financial assets at
FVTPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-sale
financial assets.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on their trade date.
All financial assets that are not classified as at FVTPL are mitially recognized at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial assets carried at
FVTPL are imitially recorded at fair value and the related transaction costs are
recognized 1n profit or loss.

Loans and receivables are non-detivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Foundation
provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
the receivables.

The Foundation’s financial assets categorized as loans and receivables are presented
as Cash, Loans Receivable, Other Receivables and Rental Deposits in the statement
of financial position. Cash includes cash on hand and demand deposits which
generally earn interest at daily bank deposit rates and are subject to msignificant

changes in value.

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, less impairment loss, if any.

Non-compounding interest and other cash flows resulting from holding financial
assets are recognized in profit or loss when earned, regardless of how the related
carrying amount of financial assets is measured. Interest calculated using the
effective interest method is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Impairment of Financial Assets under PFRS 9

From January 1, 2018, the Foundation assesses its ECL on a forward-looking basis
associated with its financial assets carried at amortized cost. Recognition of credit
losses 1s no longer dependent on the Foundation's identification of 2 credit loss
event. Instead, the Foundation considers a broader range of information in
assessing credit risk and measuring expected credit losses, including past events,
current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts that affect collectability of
the future cash flows of the financial assets.

For debt instruments measured at amortized cost, the allowance for credit losses is
based on the ECL associated with the probability of default of a financial
instrument in the next 12 months, unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since the origination of the financial asset, in such case, a lifetime ECL
for a purchased or originated credit impaired, the allowance for credit losses is
based on the change in the ECL over the life of the asset. The Foundation
recognized a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting date.



9.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

® Probabifity of Defawlt — is an estimate of likelihood of default over a given time
horizon.

® [ ass Gigen Defawlt — is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default occurs
at 2 given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the
Foundation would expect to receive, including the realization of any collateral.

& Exposure at Defanlt — represents the gross carrying amount of the financial
instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the finandal instrument (see Note 4.1),

(d)  Impairment of Financial Assets under PAS 39

As of December 31, 2017, impairment loss is provided when there is any objective
evidence that the Foundation will not be able to collect all amounts due to itin
accordance with the original terms of the receivables. The amount of the
impairment loss is determined as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not been incurred), discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate or current effective interest rate determined under the contract if the
loan has a vanable mterest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either directly or through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in profit or
loss.

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognized (such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. The
reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what
the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the
date of the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognized in
profit or loss.

{¢)  Derecognifion of Finanaal Asseis

The financial assets (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of financial assets) are derecognized when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the financial instruments expire, or when the financial assets and all
substantial risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to another party.
If the Foundation neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Foundation
recognizes its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Foundation retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Foundation continues to recognize
the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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2.4 Other Assets

Other assets pertain to other resources controlled by the Foundation as a result of past
events. They are recognized in the financial statements when it is probable that the
future economic benefits will flow to the Foundation and the asset has a cost or value
that can be measured reliably.

2.5 Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and any impairment in value.

The cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for
additions, major improvements and renewals are capitalized while expenditures for
repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
the assets as follows:

Building 15 years
uipment and vehicles 5 years

Equip y

Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Office improvements are amortzed over the estimated useful life of the improvements
of five years, or the term of the lease, whichever is shorter.

The Foundation’s property and equipment are subject to impairment testing whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

Impairment loss for property and equipment is recognized for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amounts which is the higher of its
fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. In determining value in use,
management estimates the expected furure cash flows from such asset and determines
the suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The data used for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the
Foundation’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of
asset enhancements. Discount factors determined reflect management’s assessment of
respective risk profiles, such as market and asset-specific risk factors.

Property and equipment is subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment
loss previously recognized may no longer exist. An impairment loss is reversed if the
recoverable amount of the property and equipment exceeds its carrying amount.

The residual values, estimated useful lives, and depreciation and amortization method
of property and equipment are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each

reporting perod.
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An item of property and equipment, including the related accumulated depreciation
and amortization and any impairment losses, is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in
profit or Joss in the year the item is derecognized.

2.6 Financial Liabilities

Financial liabiliies, which include microsavings (composed of Capital Build-up [CBU]
and Locked in Capital Build-up [LCBU]), loans payable and other liabilities (excluding
tax-related habilities), are recognized when the Foundation becomes a party to the
contractual terms of the instrument. These are initially recognized at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method for
maturities beyond one year, less settlement payments.

All interest-related charges incurred on financial liabilities are recognized as expense in
profit or loss as part of Project Costs under Expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans payable are raised for support of long-term funding of operations. This is
recognized at proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. Finance charges, including
premiums payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to
profit or loss on an accrual basis using the effective interest method and are added to
the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the
period in which they arise.

Financial liabilides are derecognized from the statement of financial position only
when the obligations are extinguished either through discharge, cancellation or
expiration. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognized and the consideration paid or payable is recognized in profit or loss.

2.7 Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the resulting net amount,
considered as a single financial asset or financial liability, is reported in the statement
of financial position when the Foundation currently has legally enforceable right to
set-off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realize the asset and settle the hability simultaneously. The dght of set-off must be
available at the end of the reporting period, that is, it is not contingent on future event.
It must also be enforceable in the normal course of business, in the event of default,
and in the event of insolvency or bankruptcy; and must be legally enforceable for both
entity and all counterparties to the financial instruments.

2.8 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the tming or amount of
the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a
legal or constructive obligation that has resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present
obligation, based on the most reliable evidence available at the end of the reporting
period, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.
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Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be
required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligatons as a whole.
When time value of money is matenial, long-term provisions are discounted to their
present values using a pretax rate that reflects market assessments and the nsks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

In those cases where the possible outflow of economic resource as a result of present
obligations is considered improbable or remote, or the amount to be provided for
cannot be measured reliably, no liability is recognized in the financial statements.
Similarly, possible inflows of economic benefits to the Foundation that do not yet
meet the recognition criteria of an asset are considered contingent assets, hence, are
not recognized in the financial statements. On the other hand, any reimbursement
that the Foundaton can be virtually certain to collect from a third party with respect
to the obligation is recognized as a separate asset not exceeding the amount of the
related provision.

2.9 Revenue and Expense Recognition
The following are the specific revenue recognition criteria of the Foundation:

(a) Service fees — Service fees are recognized in profit or loss for the interest income on
all instruments measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.
Unearned service chatges is recognized during the month of disbursement and
subsequently, earned as revenue, based on the effective interest method of
accounting, as the loan is fully collected from the members.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized costof a
financial asset or a financial liability and allocating the income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
furure cash flows through the expected useful life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The effective interest rate is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and cost that are integral
part of effective interest rate. Further, the Foundation esnmates cash flows by
considering all contractual terms of the financial instruments.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or group of similar financial assets
has been reduced due to an impairment loss, interest income continues to be
recognized using the original effective interest rate used to discount the future
recoverable cash flows.

{b) Inmterest — Interest income from cash in banks is recognized as interest accrues
taking into account the effective yield of the asset.

Costs and expenses are recognized in profit or loss upon utilization of the goods
and/or services or at the date they are incurred. Any finance costs are reported in
profit or loss on an accrual basis, except any borrowing costs that relates to a
qualifying asset which is capitalized as part of the cost of the asset (see Note 2.12).
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2.10 Leases — Foundanon as Lessee

Leases, which do not transfer to the Foundation substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased asset, are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments (net of any incentive received from the lessor) are
recognized as expense In profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Associated costs, such as repairs and maintenance and insurance, are expensed as
mcurred.

The Foundation determines whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease based on
the substance of the arrangement. It makes an assessment of whether the fulfillment
of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

2.11 Employee Benefits

The Foundation provides post-employment benefits to employees through a defined
benefit plan, defined contribution plans, and other employee benefits which are
recognized as follows:

(a) Post-employment Defined Benefit Plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment plan that defines an amount of
post-employment benefit that an employee will recerve on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service and salary. The
legal obligation for any benefits from this kind of post-employment plan remains
with the Foundation, even if plan assets for funding the defined benefit plan have
been acquired. The Foundation’s defined benefit pension plan covers all regular
full-time employees.

The liability recognized in the statement of financial position for a defined benefit
plan solely pertains to the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the
end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows for expected benefit payments using a discount rate derived
from the interest rates of zero coupon government bonds as published by
Bloomberg using its valuation technology, Bloomberg Valuation, that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have
terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related post-employment
Liability.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses arsing from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are reflected immediately in the
statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. Interest expense is
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period, taking
account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a
result of benefit payments. Interest expense is reported as part of Finance costs
under the Project Costs account in the statement of comprehensive income.
Past-service costs are recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period of a
plan amendment or curtailment.
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() Post-employment Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contnbution plan is a post-employment plan under which the
Foundation pays fixed contributions into an independent entity (such as the
Social Security System). The Foundation has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions after payment of the fixed contribution. The
contributions recognized in respect of defined contribution plans are expensed as
they fall due. Liabilities or assets may be recognized if underpayment or
prepayment has occurred and are normally of a short-term nature.

(¢) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the
Foundation before the normal rerirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Foundation recognizes
termination benefits at the earlier of when it can no longer withdraw the offer of
such benefits and when it recognizes costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of PAS 37, Prosisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, and involves
the payment of termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured based on the
number of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due more
than 12 months after the end of each reporting period are discounted to their
present value.

(@) Compensared Absences

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days
(including holiday entitlement) remaining at the end of the reporting period.
They are included in Other Liabilities account in the statement of financial
position at the undiscounted amount that the Foundation expects to payas a
result of the unused entitlement.

2.12 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred,
except to the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset

(Le., an asset that takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale) are capitalized as part of cost of such asset. The capitalization of borrowing
costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are
complete.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalizadon.

2.13 Fund Balance

Grants and contributions represent the initial contribution received by the Foundation
at the start of its operations.
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Cumulatve results of operations represent all current and prior period results of
operations as reported in the profit or loss section of the statement of comprehensive

income. Consistent with the Foundation’s registered activities, all of these are flowed
back into its operations.

Remeasurement of post-employment defined benefit plan pertains to the net
cumulative actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes
in actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment defined
benefit obligation.

2.14 Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Related party transactions are transfers of resources, services or obligations between
the Foundation and its related parties, regardless whether a price is charged.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other
party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. These parties include: (a) individuals owning, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, control or are controlled by, or under common
control with the Foundation; (b) associates; and, (c) individuals owning, directly or
indirectly, an interest in the voting power of the Foundation that gives them significant
influence over the Foundation and close members of the family of any such individual.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the
substance of the relationship and not merely on the legal form.

2.15 Events after the End of the Reporting Period

Any post-year-end event that provides additional information about the Foundation’s
statement of financial position at the end of the reporting period (adjusting event) is
reflected in the financial statements. Post-year-end events that are not adjusting
events, if any, are disclosed when matenal to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Foundation’s financial statements in accordance with PFRS
requires management to make judgments and estimates that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and related notes. Judgments and estimates are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may ultimately differ from these estimates.

3.1 Critical Management Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies
In the process of applying the Foundation’s accounting policies, management has

made the following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial estimates:

(a) Determination of ECL on Loans Recetvable (2018)

The Foundation applies the general approach in measuring the ECL for loans
receivables.
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To measure the ECL, the expected loss rates were calculated over a period of
three years before December 31, 2018 or January 1, 2018, respectively, and the
corresponding historical credit losses experienced within such pedod. The
historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the counterparties
to settle the receivables. The Foundation has identified the customer price index
to be the most relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates
based in expected changes in this factor.

The Foundation’s management intends to regularly calibrate (ie., on an annual
basis) the rate to consider the historical credit loss experience with
forward-looking information (L., forecast economic conditions). Details about
the ECL on the Foundation’s loans receivable is disclosed in Note 4.1.

Evaluation of Business Model Appized in Managing Financial Instruments (2018)

Upon adoption of PFRS 9, the Foundation developed business models, which
reflect how it manages its portfolio of financial instruments. The Foundation’s
business models need not be assessed at entity level or as a whole but shall be
applied at the level of a portfolio of financial instruments (Le., group of financial
instruments that are managed together by the Foundation) and not on an
instrument-by-instrument basis (i.e., not based on intention or specific
characteristics of individual financial instrument).

In determining the classification of a financial instrument under PFRS 9, the
Foundation evaluates in which business model a financial instrument or a
portifolio of financial instruments belong to taking into consideration the
objectives of each business model established by the Foundation (e.g., generating
accrual income, direct martching to a specific hability) as those relate to the

Foundation’s l:mdmg sttatcgjts.

Testing the Cash Flow Characteristics of Financial Assets and Continuing Evalnation of
the Business Model (2018)

In determining the classification of financial assets under PFRS 9, the Foundation
assesses whether the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are SPPI on the principal outstanding, with interest
representing time value of money and credit risk associated with the principal
amount outstanding. The assessment as to whether the cash flows meet the test is
made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated. Any other
contractual term that changes the timing or amount of cash flows (unless itis a
variable interest rate that represents time value of money and credit risk) does not
meet the amortized cost criteria. In cases where the reladonship between the
passage of ime and the interest rate of the financial instrument may be imperfect,
known as modified time value of money, the Foundation assesses the modified
time value of money feature to determine whether the financial instrument sl
meets the SPPI catedon. The objective of the assessment is to determine how
different the undiscounted contractuzl cash flows could be from the undiscounted
cash flows that would anse if the ime value of money element was not modified
(the benchmark cash flows). If the resulting difference is significant, the SPPI
criterion is not met. In view of this, the Foundation considers the effect of the
modified time value of money element in each reporting period and cumulatively
over the life of the financial instrument.
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In addition, PFRS 9 emphasized that if more than an infrequent sale is made out
of a portfolio of financial assets carried at amortized cost, an entity should assess

whether and how such sales are consistent with the objective of collecting
contractual cash flows.

Distinction between Operating and Finance Leases

The Foundation has entered into various lease agreements as a lessee. Critical
judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as
either an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of
significant risk and rewards of ownership of the properties covered by the
agreements. Fallure to make the right judgment will result in either overstatement
or understatement of assets and liabilities.

Management has assessed that its existing lease agreements qualify as operating
leases.

Recogrition of Provisions and Contingencies
Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and

contingencies. Policies on recognition of provisions and contingencies are
discussed in Note 2.8 and relevant disclosures are presented in Note 18.

3.2 Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting periods, that have a significant risk
of causing a matenal adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next reporting period:

(a)

Estimation of Allowance for ECL (2018)

The measurement of the allowance for ECL on financial assets at amortized
cost 15 an ares that requires the use of significant assumptions about the future
economic conditions and credit behavior (e.g., likelihood of members and other
counterparties defaulting and the resulting losses). Explanation of the inputs,
assumptions and estimation used in measuring ECL is further detailed in

Note 4.1.

The methodology and assumptions used in estimating ECL allowance are
reviewed regularly by the Foundation to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

The carrying value of loans and other receivables and rental deposits and the
analysis of allowance for impairment on such financial assets are shown in
Notes 4.1, 7, and 18.
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(b) Impairment of Loans and Other Receivables and Rental Deposits (2077)

¢)

(@)

e/

Adequate amount of allowance for impairment is provided for specific and
groups of accounts, where objective evidence of impairment exists. The
Foundation evaluates the amount of allowance for impairment based on available
facts and circumstances affecting the collectability of the accouats, including, but
not limited to, the length of the Foundation’s relationship with the members and
other counterparties, the members’ and other counterparties’ current credit status,
average age of accounts, collection experience and historical loss expetience. The
methodology and assumptions used in estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Foundation to reduce any differences between loss estimates and
actual loss experience.

Estimation of Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Foundation estimates the useful lives of property and equipment based on
the period over which the assets are expected to be available for use, The
estimated useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are
updated if expectations differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and
tear, technical or commercial obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of
the assets.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are analyzed in Note 8. Based
on management's assessment as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, there is no
change in estimated useful lives of property and equipment during those years.
Actual results, however, may vary due to changes in estimates brought about by
changes in factors mentioned in the preceding page.

Impairment of Property and Equipment

The Foundation’s policy on estimating the impairment of property and
equipment is discussed in detail in Note 2.5. Though management believes that
the assumprtions used in the estimation of the catrying amount of the assets are
appropriate and reasonable, significant changes in these assumptions may
materially affect the assessment of recoverable amount and any resulting
impairment loss could have a material adverse effect on the results of operations.

Management has assessed that there are no indications of impairment on the
Foundation’s property and equipment at the end of each reporting period; hence,
no impairment losses are required to be recognized on those assets in any of the

reporting periods.
Vaiuation of Post-employment Defined Benefit Obligation

The determination of the Foundation’s obligation and cost of post-employment
defined benefit is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by an
independent actuary in calculating such amounts. Those assumptions include,
among others, discount rates and salary rate increase. A significant change in any
of these actuanial assumptions may generally affect the recognized expense, other
comprehensive income or losses and the carrying amount of the post-employment
benefit obligation in the next reporting period.
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The amounts of post-employment benefit obligation and expense and an analysis
of the movements in the estimated present value of post-employment benefit
obligation, as well as the analysis of the sensitivity of such obligation to the
changes in significant assumptions are presented in Note 14.2.

RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Foundation is exposed to certain financial risks in relation to financial
instruments. The Foundation’s financial assets and liabilities by category are
summarized in Note 5. The main types of risks are credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Foundaton’s risk management is coordinated with its BOT, and focuses on
actively securing the Foundation’s short-to-medium term cash flows by minimizing the
exposure to financial markets.

The Foundation does not engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options.

The most significant financial risks to which the Foundation is exposed to are
described in the succeeding sections.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty may fail to discharge an obligation to the
Foundation. The Foundation is exposed to this risk for financial instruments arising
from granting loans and advances to its members and its employees, security deposit
to lessors and placing deposits to various local banks.

The Foundation continuously monitors default of its members and other
counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and incorporates the
information into its credit risk controls. The Foundation’s policy is to deal only with
creditworthy counterparties.

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the
financial assets as shown in the statements of financial position or in the detailed
analysis provided in the notes to the financial statements, as summarized below.

MNotes 2018 2017
Cash (4] P 1,689,187,884 P 835,183,098
Loans recetvable - net T 16,777,082,727 12,768,096,012
Other recetvables 7 114,789,788 175,602,774
Rental deposits 18 34,593,987 27,248 830
P18,615,654,386 P13.806,130.714
fa) Cash

The credit risk for cash is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable
banks with high quality external credit ratings. Cash in banks are insured by the
Philippine Deposit Insurance Corporation up to a maximum coverage of P0.5 million
for every depositor per banking institution.
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() Loans and Other Receivables and Rental Deposits

The Foundation’s policy is to perform an assessment at the end of each reporting
period, whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition. The Foundation considers the change in the risk of default
occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument. In accordance with the
Foundation’s policy, a debt instrument is assessed for impairment based on the

following stages:

Stage 1 : When a debt instrument is first recognized, the Foundation recognizes credit
losses based on the twelve-month ECLs. Stage 1 debt security also includes facilities
where the credit risk has improved and security has been reclassified from Stage 2.

Stage 2 : When a debt instrument has shown a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Foundation recognizes an allowance for the lifetime ECL. Stage 2
debt instruments also includes facilities where the credit risk has improved and the
instrument has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: When a debt instrument is considered as credit impaired, the Foundation
recognizes an allowance for the lifeime ECL.

Based on historical information about the members default rates, management have
determined that any loan with one day past due is considered to pose a significant
increase in credit risk. Therefore, all loans that are past due are considered to be under
Stage 2, wherein lifetime ECL is applied.

The key elements used in the calculation of ECL are as follows:

* Probability of Defanit (PD) — is an esumate of likelihood of default over a given
time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed
period, if the instrument has not been previously derecognized and is still in the
portfolio.

* Lass Given Defanit (LGD) — is an estimate of loss arising in case where a default
occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash
flows of a financial instrument due from a counterparty and those that the
Foundation would expect to receive, including the realization of any collateral.

* Expasure at Defanlt (EAD) — represents the gross carrying amount of the
financial instruments subject to the impairment calculation.

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD, and EAD for each future period
and for each collective segment. These three components are multiplied together and
adjusted for the likelihood of survival (i.e., the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted
in an earlier month). The lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to
the 12-month PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on a portfolio
from the point of initial recognition through the lifetime of the loans. The marurity
profile is based on historical observed data and is assumed to be the same across all
assets within the portfolio. This is supported by historical analysis. The 12-month and
lifetime PDs are determined based on the expected payment profile of the members.

The calculation of ECL incorporates forward-looking information. The Foundation
has performed historical analysis and identified the key economic value factor affectng
credit risk and ECL for the loan portfolio.
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The loans receivable are secured by the microsavings contributions of all active
members, and the Foundation is not exposed to any significant credit risk exposure to
any single counterparty. Significant portion of the Foundation’s loans receivable
pertains to claims from various groups of members with similar characteristics.
However, the Foundation has no experence of significant members’ default and
historical losses from any single group of counterparties.

Based on the ECL model of PFRS 9, the Foundation provides an allowance for
impairment in 2018 on stage 1, 12-month ECL, and stage 2, lifetime ECL, loans
receivable amounting to P879.6 million and P3.4 million, respectively. Further, in
2017, the ECL on stage 1, 12-month ECL, and stage 2, lifetime ECL, loans receivable
amounted to P669.6 million and P2.4 million, respectively. The impairment loss on
ECL 1s presented as Impairment loss, under Project Cost account

{see Notes 7.1 and 13).

The ECL on other receivables mainly pertain to loans and advances granted to the
Foundation’s employees which are collected through salary deduction. Thus,
considered to be fully recoverable based on the management’s assessment

{see Note 7.2).

42  Liguidity Risk

The Foundation manages its liquidity needs by carefully monitoring scheduled debt
servicing payments for long-term financial hiabilites as well as cash outflows due in a
day-to-day business. Liquidity needs are monitored in various time bands, on a
day-to-day and week-to-week basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30-day
projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a six-month and one-year period are
identified monthly.

The Foundation maintains cash to meet its liquidity requirements for up to 30-day
periods. Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to consistently maintain an
effective collection turn-over. As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, portfolio at risk is
0.38% and 0.36%, respectively.

As at December 31, 2018, the Foundaton’s financial liabilities have contractual
maturities which are presented below.

Within Within After one year
_MNowes _ Emonths 0 I2months  butwithinfiveyears  Toml
Mocrogavings 9 P 92126462665 P - F - P 9,726,462 665
Loans p&:nbh' 10 492912817 316,740,700 1,304,214,067 2,113,867 584
Cithes babibres 1 — 945570.756 . - 945570756

B10564546 008 E_MAT40.700 B L304.204,067 P12,185,900,008



22,

This compares to the maturity of the Foundation’s financial liabilities as of
December 31, 2017 as follows:

Withir Within After one year
—Motes = _Gmomghs  _ ldmonths | butwicthinfeeyesss  Total
MBCrosavings 9 P 699171061 P z P . B 6,979.171,061
Loans payabile 10 431,610,175 441,197,200 983,106,983 1,855,914,358
(Other halibties 1 — 1,170,053 349 E - — 1170053849
E BSENASSORS F 441307200 B 983106083 P10.005130 268

The above contractual maturities reflect the gross cash flows, which may differ from
the carrying values of the liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.

CATEGORIES AND OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

5.1 Cartying Amounts and Fair Values by Category

The carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities at

amortized cost presented in the statements of financial position are shown below and
in the succeeding page (amounts in thousands).

2018 2017
Carrying Fair Carrymg Fair
Financial Assets
Cash 6 P LGE9,18E P 1,689,188 P Bi5,183 P B35,183
Loans recesvable - net 7 16,777,083 16,777,083 12, T68 5 12,768,096
Orher recesvables 7 114,790 114,790 175,603 175,603
Rental deposis 18 34,594 M504 _ ZI29 27249
E___ 18615655 P JRGIS685 £ 13806131 P 13806131
Financtul Liabidities
Mierosavimgs 9 | 2 8858154 P  BESEANM T 6775177 P 6,775,177
Loans payable 10 1,934,000 1,934,000 1,700,000 1,700,000
Orther babilities 11 945,571 9455M _ 1170054 _LI70.054

B 11737725 E 11737735 T 9645251 P 90645231

Management considers that the carrying amount of the Foundation’s financial assets
and financial liabilites measured at amortized cost approximates the fair values due to
its short term duration.

5.2 Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with PFRS 13, Fair IValue Measurements, the fair values of financial assers
and financial liabilities and non-financial assets which are measured at fair value on a
recurring or non-recurring basis and those assets and liabilities not measured at fair
value but for which fair values are disclosed in accordance with other relevant PFRS,
are categorized into three levels based on the significance of inputs used to measure
the fair value. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

s  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that an entity can access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices); and,



®  Level 3: inputs for the asset or hability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

The level within which the asset or liability is classified is determined based on the
lowest level of significant mput to the fair value measurement.

For purposes of determining the market value at Level 1, 2 market is regarded as active
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,

industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.

For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, management
considers that their carrying amounts approximate or equal to their fair values. Based
on management review of its financial instruments measured at amortized cost, except
for cash which is considered Level 1, all the rest are determined to be Level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy.

5.3 Offserting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the loans receivable and the related microsavings
and the loans payable and the related loans receivable assigned as security for the loans
payable are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and similar
agreements. Each agreement between the Foundation and counterparties allows for
net settlement of the relevant financial assets and financial liabilities when both elect to
settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, financial assets and financial
liabilities will be settled on a gross basis, however, each party to the master netting
agreement or similar agreement will have the option to settle all such amounts on a net
basis in the event of default of the other party.

CASH

The Foundation’s cash in bank balance as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted
to P1,689.2 million and P835.2 million, respectively. Cash in banks generally earn
interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Interest earned from cash in banks amounted to P15.6 million and P5.3 million in
2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of Other Revenues account in the
statements of comprehensive income (see Note 12).

None of the Foundation’s savings deposits were held as security for any of the
Foundation’s liabilities at the end of the reporting periods.
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LOANS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
These accounts include the following:

7.1 Loans Recerfvable

Loans recetvable consist of following as at December 31:

2018 2017
Loans recervable P19,496,171,500 P14,842 479,850
Unearned service charges (—1,836,084,373) (_ 1,402378,738)
17,660,087,127  13,440.101,112
Allowance for impairment (___883,004,400) (__ 672,005,100)

P16,777,082,727 P12768.096,012

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation has 1,753,871 and 1,532,695
active members, respectively.

Loans receivable represent microfinance loans granted to the Foundation’s members.
These loans have terms of six months and are partially secured by the respective
carrying amounts of microsavings of individual members (see Note 9). These loans are
subject to a nominal rate of 15% service charge all throughout the six-month term. On
Aprl 25, 2017, the BOT approved the reduction of the service charge to 12.5%. The
service fees earned from these loans amounted to P6,283.9 million and P4,866.8 million
in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and are shown as part of Service Fees in the statements
of comprehensive income.

Starting 2018, the Foundation charged 0.5% of every principal amount of loan released
to each member. The service fee earned from these transactions amounted to

P278.4 million in 2018, and are shown as part of Service Fees in the 2018 statement of
comprehensive income.

Loans receivable have been reviewed for indications of impairment. Certain
receivables were found to be impaired; hence, adequate amount of allowance for
impairment has been recognized accordingly (see Note 4.1).

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment at the beginning and end of 2018 and
2017 is shown below.

Note 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 672,005,100 P 442,019,300
Impairment loss during the year i3 350,464,480 286,680,802
Write-off of receivables
previously provided
with allowance (___139,465,180) (__56,695,002)
Balance at end of year P 883,004,400 P 672,005,100

Loans receivable written-off in 2018 and 2017 pertain to the outstanding balance of
loans granted to 22,446 and 10,689 members or 1.3% and 0.7% of active members,
respectively.
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Certain loans receivable of the Foundation amounting to P446.3 million and
P605.4 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were assigned with
recourse to a local bank as security to the Foundation's borrowings from these local
banks as discussed in detail in Note 10.

7.2 Other Receivables

Other receivables consist of personal and mobility loans, and noninterest-bearing
advances granted to the Foundation’s personnel with total carrying amount of
P114.8 million and P175.6 million as of December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Standard service fees of 5% for personal loans and 10% for motorcycle loans are
charged in both of the reporting periods and are recognized as service charges on
employee loans under Other Revenues account in the statements of comprehensive
mncome (see Note 12). These loans are paid by employees every pay period through
salary deductons.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, other receivables were reviewed for indications
of impairment and none 1s considered impaired (see Note 4.1).

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The gross carrying amounts and accumulated depreciation and amortization of
property and equipment at the beginning and end of 2018 and 2017 are shown below.

Building
and Office Fumiture and Egquipment
Improvements _ Fixtures = aod Vehicles — _ Towal

December 31, 2018

Cost P 65,678,584 P 289,884,044 P 35071028 P 390,633,656
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization ( 19.865.483) (_195337.495) (__21LJ779.128) (  236.982.106)
Net carrying amount P 45813101 P 94546549 P_ 13291900 P 155,651,550
Drecember 31, 2017
Cost P 65,678,584 P 217158377 P 32,7BH.B53 P 315625814
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (15486901 (__149076701) (__16562.013) ([ 181.125.614)
Net carrying amount P_ 50191683 P_6ROBLET6 P_16206841 P 134500200
Jamuary 1, 2017
Cost P 65,678,384 P 167,013,410 P 26,984,553 P 259,676,547
Accumulated depreciation
and amortization (11108329 (  109.525.420) (114599689 { 132.093.747)
Net carrying amount P 54570255 P_ 57487981 P 15524564 P 127582800
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A reconciliation of the carrying amounts of property and equipment at the beginning
and end of 2018 and 2017 is shown below.

Building
and Office Furmiture and Equipment
Improvements _ Fixmores = _and Vehicles — Total

Balance at January 1, 2018,

net of accumulated

depreciation 2nd

wrnurtzation P 50,191,683 P 68081676 P 16226841 P 134,500200
Additions } 72,725,667 2,282,175 75,007 B42
Depreciation and

amortizaton charges

for the year (4378583 (__ 46260794) (5217116 (55856492

Balance at December 31, 2018,
oet of accemulated
depreciation and
amortization P__45813a01 P_94346549 P 13201900 P 153,651,550

Balanee at Janpary 1, 2017,

net of accumulated

depreciation and

emartization P 54,570,255 P 57487981 P 15524564 P 127582800
Additions : 50,144,967 5,604,300 55949 267
Depreciation and

amortization charpes

for the year { 4378572 (39551278 (___ SA0202% (___ 49.031B67)

Balance at December 31, 2017,
net of accumulated

depreciation and
amortization E_S50191685 E 68081676 P 16226841  E 134300200

The amount of depreciation and amortization is allocated and reported in the statements
of comprehensive income as follows (see Note 13):

2018 2017
Project costs P 43,719,133 P 35,772,986
General and administrative expenses 12,137,359 13,258,881
E__55856492 P__ 49031867
MICROSAVINGS
This account is broken down as follows:
2018 2017
CBU P 7,665,968,749 P5,828,407,209
LCBU _1.192.185,010 __ 946,769,600
P 8.858,153,.759 P6,775176.809

The collected CBU and LCBU or microsavings is for purposes of maintaining a
compensating balance, which is used to offset against the member’s outstanding loan
balance in case of default (see Note 7). Historically, default rates for the last three
years have not exceeded 1% of the carrying balance of loans receivable as at the
reporting periods.
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CBU pertains to weekly savings of P50 or more, that each member maintain during
the first loan cycle, which earns rebates of up to 7% per annum. On the succeeding
loan cycles, the members have to maintain a balance equivalent to at least 15% of the
availed principal loan. Rebates are computed and released to clients at the end of
December every year.

LCBU is a mandatory noninterest bearing, alternative savings that is locked in as to
member withdrawal. The weekly contribution is fixed at P10. When the LCBU

reaches P2,400, 50% of such is transferred to CBU. It can only be withdrawn in full
by the member upon termination of membership from the Foundation.

All active members of the Foundation are required to maintain their microsavings
contributions based on prescribed minimum levels.

LOANS PAYABLE

The composition of the Foundation’s outstanding bank loans is shown below.

2018 2017
Current P 715,000,000 P 476,000,000
Non-current _1,219,000,000 _1,224,000,000

P1,934.000,000 E1,700,000,000

To enable the Foundation to provide uninterrupted microfinance loans to members in
accordance with the Foundation’s microfinance program, the Foundation, as part of
its cash management, obtains financing through bank loans from various financial
institutions and/ or organization.

As approved by the BOT on November 17, 2016, the Foundation entered into a Fadility
Agreement (the Agreement) as corporate notes issuer, with three local universal banks as
initial noteholders, Credit Guarantee & Investment Facility (a trust fund of the Asian
Development Bank) as guarantor, and BPI Capital Corporation as mandated lead
arranger and bookrunner. Based on the Agreement, which was signed on

January 26, 2017, the initial noteholders grant to the Foundation a loan facility with a
maximum prncipal amount of P2.0 billion, subject to release in not more than three
tranches starting February 2017 to January 2018. As of December 31, 2018, the
Foundation has fully drawn the P2.0 billion. The net proceeds of the note issnance is
used by the Foundation in financing its expansion plans, paying off existing bank loans,
and for other general corporate purposes.

In addition, the initial noteholders require the Foundation to maintain the following
ratios: operational self-sufficiency ratio of more than 110%, portfolio at nsk of less
than 1.5%, equity to gross loan portfolio of more than 15%, net loan portfolio as
percentage of assets of more than 80% and a debt to equity ratio of less than 190%.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Foundation is compliant with all the securty
requirements and covenants imposed by the respective creditors.
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In 2018 and 2017, the Foundation obtained a short-term secured loans payable with a
local bank amounting to P200.0 million in each year. As a security, certain loans
receivable of the Foundation amounting to P446.3 million and P605.4 million as of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, were assigned to the creditor with recourse
(see Note 7.1).

A summary of the terms and conditions of each loan as at December 31, 2018 and
2017 is presented below:

Cutstanding

B 790,000,000 P1,000.000000 Foedat507% Unsecured 2022
434,000,000 500,000,000 Fixed at 5.17% Unsecured 2022
- 200,000,000  Fized at 4.5% Secured, assigned receivables 2018

P505.4 million
10,000,000 2 Mil Unsecured 2019
200,000,000 . Fixved at 5% Secured, assigned receivables 2019

P446.3 million
500,000,000 - Fixed at 5.9% Linsecored 202

E 1,934,000.000 E1,700.000,000

The P10.0 million, with 0% interest loan pertains to borrowings from Restart Micro
Enterprise, Inc., a non-stock corporation who implemented a rehabilitation program
for Marawi vicums. Said entity extended a loan to the Foundation to be used by the
latter to provide loans to its clients affected in Marawi at an interest rate of 4% only to
cover its operational costs. In line with said condition, the parties agreed that the loan
shall have an interest rate of (% and 12 months repayment terms.

Interest expense on interest-bearing loans amounted to P111.6 million and

P77.3 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is presented as part of Finance costs
under Project Costs in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 13).
Unpaid interests as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounting to P5.7 million and
P3.9 million, respectively, are presented as part of Accrued expenses under the Other
Liabilities in the statements of financial position (see Note 11).

The changes in Loans Payable account in 2018 and 2017 are shown below.

2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P1,700,000,000 P 770,000,000
Additional loans payable 710,000,000 1,700,000,000
Repayments of loans payable (__476,000,000) (__ 770,000,000)
Balance at end of year P1,934.000,000 P1,700.000,000



11

-29.
OTHER LIABILITIES
This account includes the following:
_Note ___ 2018 2017
Beneficiary program and
support trust fund (BPSTF) P 352,060,278 P 715,747,780
Accrued expenses 10 268,312,387 212,500,641
Staff benevolent fund 254,671,200 203,949,400
Accounts payable — 129,507,093 70,566,770

P1,004,550,958 P1.202.764,591

BPSTF represents the cumulative trust fund set aside to cover the payment of a loan
in case of death of 2 member, death benefits, health-care program, hospitalization
benefits, scholarship to the children of the qualified members, and provision for
distribution relief goods and other livelihood support intervention in time of calamities
such as typhoon, fires, earthquakes and floods. Further, this is also used to cover
losses in case of robbery and hold-up of loan officers while exercising efforts of
collection from members. Furthermore, BPSTF is also utilized by the Foundation for
its numerous corporate social responsibility activities that are conducted nationwide.

In 2018 and 2017, the total client community services charged to BPSTF amounted to
P363.7 million and 175.3 million, respectively.

Staff benevolent fund includes amounts set aside for employee hospitalization,
employee death aid, and employee welfare and benefits.

Accrued expenses include accruals for interest expense and various expenses for the
operations of the Foundation such as light and water, postage and telephone, travel
and reimbursable expenses and repairs and maintenance.

Accounts payable include gross receipts and withholding taxes payable, and unclaimed
benefits of resigned personnel during the reporting periods.

OTHER REVENUES

This account includes the following:

_Notes 2018 2017

Membership contribution P 55324550 P -
Service charges on

employee loans 72 16,385,260 17,101,223
Interest income from

bank deposits 6 15,609,356 5,312,714
Gain from recovery of

written-off accounts 5,510,965 1,448,565

P_92850,131 ©P__23.862502
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In 2018, each new group member of the Foundation is required to contribute P50,
The contributions is used by the Foundation to cover administrative fee and supplies
cost, presented as part of Project Costs in the 2018 statement of comprehensive

ncome (see Note 13),

EXPENSES

Derails of expenses by nature are shown below.

Notes 2018 2017

Employee benefits 141,15 P 2,189,435498 P 1,917,017,085
Travel and transportation 509,840,328 441,617,600
Impairment loss 71 350,464,480 286,680,802
Office rental 18 165,778,057 131,951,751
Taxes and licenses 19() 163,940,885 128,515,011
Interest expense 10,14.2 146,944,016 97,567,505
Repairs and maintenance 126,154,683 114,674,574
Office supplies and reproduction 91,271,235 74,538,772
Staff development and

conference 82,572,609 62,418,025
Postage and telephone 65,929,739 54,002,444
Depreciation and amortization 8 55,856,492 49,031,867
Light and water 40,853,721 34,325,852
Grants and donations 22,988,960 22 547 650
Professional fees 20,914,698 32,078,607
Miscellaneous __47,003978 24555707

£4,079,249,379 B 3471523252

These expenses are classified and reported in the statements of comprehensive income

as follows:
2018 2017
Project costs P3,445,853,793 P 2,901,495,509
General and administrative
expenses __634,095.586 __ 570,027,743

P4,079.949.379 P3,471.523252
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Project costs are broken down as follows:

Notes

Employee benefits 14.1, 15
Travel and transportation
Impairment loss 7.1
Office rental 18
Interest expense 10, 14.2
Repairs and maintenance 15
Statf development and

conference
Office supplies and reproduction
Depreciation and amortization B
Light and water
Postage and telephone
Taxes and licenses 19¢f)
Miscellaneous

Details of general and administrative expenses are shown below.

Notes

Employee benefits 14.1, 15
Taxes and licenses 19¢)
Travel and transportation
Postage and telephone
Professional fees
Office supplies and reproduction
Grants and donations
Depreciation and amortization 8
Interest expense 10, 14.2
Staff development and

conference
Office rental 18
Miscellaneous

2018 2017
P1,900,202,208 P1,654,677,115
467,156,175 386,715,741
350,464,480 286,680,802
163,971,150 131,249,751
136,352,110 91,479,275
125,436,003 114,674,574
72,272,295 56,195,848
63,160,317 45228 442
43,719,133 35,772,986
39,961,835 33,401,263
32,992,796 29,344,103
24,919,324 20,268,824
25245967 15,806,785
P3,445,853,793 P2901,495,509

2018 2017
P 289,233,290 P 262,339,970
139,021,561 108,246,187
42,684,153 54,901,859
32,936,943 24,658,341
20,545,891 31,719,726
28,110,918 29,310,330
22,988,960 22,547,650
12,137,359 13,258,881
10,591,906 6,088,230
10,300,314 6,222,177
1,806,907 702,000

— 23,737,384 10,032,392
P 634095586 P 570.027.743
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EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
14.1 Salaries and Employee Benefits Expense

Expenses recognized for salaries and other employee benefits are presented below.

Notes 2018 2017
Salaries and wages P1,846,363,332 P1,551,133,898
Post-employment benefits 142 136,261,038 192,371,900
$SS, HDMF,
Philhealth contributions 144,839,928 112,704,787
Staff benevolent fund 61,971,200 60,806,500

13 P2,189435498 P1917.017,085

The amounts of employee benefits are allocated and reported in the statements of
comprehensive income as follows (see Note 13):

2018 2017

Project costs P1,900,202,208 P 1,654,677,115
General and administrative expenses _ 289,233,290 262.339.970

P2,189435498 P1,917.017.085
14.2 Posr-empioyment Defined Benefit Plan
(@)  Characteristics of the Defined Benefit Plan

The Foundation maintains an unfunded and noncontributory post-employment
defined benefit plan covering all regular full-time employees. The Foundation
does not have a formal, trusteed retirement plan.

In 2018, the anticipated retirement benefit set by management increased
from 175% to 200% of the plan member’s final monthly basic salary pay per
year of service. Benefits are to be paid in lump sum, upon retirement or

separation.
()  Explanation of Amosunts Presented in the Finandal Staterments

Actuaria] valuations are made annually to update the post-employment benefit
costs and obligation. All amounts presented in the succeeding pages are based
on the actuarial valuation report obtained from an independent actuary in 2018
and 2017.
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The movements in the present value of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation recognized in the statements of financial position are as follows:

— 2018 2017
Balance at beginning of year P 614,024,600 P 377,214,100
Past service cost 79,745,729 87,717,780
Current service cost 56,515,309 104,654,120
Interest expense 35,306,354 20,294,100
Remeasurements - actuarial losses
(gains) arising from changes in:

Financial assumptons { 152,729,020) | 30,228,045)

Expenence adjustments 42,005,120 54,372 545
Benefits paid (_36,902.192) =
Balance at end of year P__ 637,965,900 P __ 614024600

The components of amounts recognized in profit or loss and in other
comprehensive income in respect of the post-employment defined benefit plan are
as follows:

2018 2017
Reported in profit or loss:
Past service cost P 79,745,729 P 87,717,780
Cutrent service cost 56,515,309 104,654,120
Interest expense 35306354 20,294,100
P 171,567,392 P 212,666,000
Reported in other comprebensive income (loss):
Actuarial losses (gains) arising
from changes in:
Financial assumptions (P 152,729,020) (P 30,228,045)
Experience adjustments 42005120 _ 54372545

(E_110,723,900) P___ 24,144,500

Retirement benefit expense is allocated and presented in the statements of
comprehensive income under the following classification:

2018 2017
Project costs P 95,382,727 P 134,660,330
General and administrative expenses 40,878,311 87.711.570

P__136261038 P 192371900

The interest expense on the obligation is included as part of Finance Costs
under the Project Costs account in the statements of comprehensive income
(see Note 13).

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income or loss were included
within item that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss.
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In determining the amounts of the post-employment defined benefit
obligation, the following significant actuarial assumptions were used:

2018 2017
Discount rates 7.45% 5.75%
Expected rate of salary increases 12.0% 12.0%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published stadstics and
mortality tables. The average remaining working lives of an individual retiring at
the age of 60 is 19 for both males and females. These assumptions were
developed by management with the assistance of an independent actuary.
Discount factors are determined close to the end of each reporting period by
reference to the interest rates of a zero coupon government bond with terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the post-employment obligation. Other
assumptions are based on current actuarial benchmarks and management’s
historical experience.

Other information

The information on the sensitivity analysis for certain significant actuarial
assumptions and the timing and uncertainty of future cash flows related to the
retirement plan are described below.

() Sensitivity Analysis

The following table summarizes the effects of changes in the significant
actuarial assumptions used in the determination of the post-employment
defined benefit obligation as of December 31, 2018 and 2017:

Impact on Post-employment Defined

Benefit Obligation
Change in Increase in Decrease in
—Assumption = _Assumption __Assumption
December 31, 2018
Discount rate +/-10% (P 153,111,867) P 204,149,000
Salary growth rate +/- 1L.0% 185,010,025 (  146,732,209)
December 31, 2017
Discount rate +/-1.0% (P 146,037,607) P 196,630,276
Salary growth rate +/-1.0% 183,482,873 (  140,814,486)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while
holding all other assumptions constant. This analysis may not be representative
of the actual change in the post-employment defined benefit obligation as it is
unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another
as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the
above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the post-employment defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period has been calculated using
the projected unit credit method, which is the same as that applied in calculating
the post-employment defined benefit obligation recognized in the statement of
financial position.
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The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis
did not change compared to the previous years.

(i)  Funding Arrangements and Expected Contribution

At the end of the reporting period, the Foundation has not yet established its
funding plan for post-employment defined benefit obligation, While there are
no minimum funding requirements in the country, the size of the underfunding
may pose a cash flow risk in about ten years’ time when a significant number of
employees is expected to retire.

Within 10 years, the Foundation’s undiscounted expected benefit payments from
the plan amount to P23.9 million and P17.6 million at the end of 2018 and 2017

respectively.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the weighted average duration of the
post-employment defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period is

51X years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Foundation’s related parties include its key management personnel and others as
described in Note 2.14.

The compensation given to key management personnel in the form of short-term
benefits amounted to P60.9 million and P50.9 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively;
while post-employment benefits amounted to P28.9 million and P39.6 million in 2018
and 2017, respectively and is presented as part of Employee Benefits under Expenses
in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 13),

In 2016, the Foundation entered into a software implementation contract with

Mr. Mehedi Tarafder, Chief Executive Officer of Jyosna Inc. and son of the president
of the Foundation, for the development of a software needed by the Foundation to
achieve full automation of its operation at its branch level, which include client
management, loan tracking and collection of multiple loan services, reporting and
consolidation of Financial Information System at central level. The contract with
Jyosna Inc. satsfied the Foundation’s policy on conflict of interest. The Information
Technology expenses amounted to P15.3 million and P14.9 million in 2018 and 2017,
respectively and is presented as part of Repairs and maintenance under Project Costs
in the statements of comprehensive income (see Note 13).

TAXATION COVERAGE AND EXEMPTIONS

The Foundation is a nonstock, nonprofit corporation and the primary purpose of
which is one of those enumerated in Section 30 of the Tax Reform Act of 1997

(R.A. No. 8424). No part of the excess of revenues over expenses of the Foundation
inures to the benefir of any of its members, employees, key officers or board of
trustees. The trustees do not receive any compensation, except for inconsequential
honorarium to defray costs incurred in attending board meetings. In case of
dissolution, the assets of the Foundation shall be transferred to a similar institution or
to the government, in the absence of the former.
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On November 3, 2015, R.A. No. 10693 otherwise known as the “Mizrofinance NGOs
Ae” (the Act) was signed into law. The Act provides that duly registered and
microfinance NGOs shall be eligible to the preferential tax treatment of two percent
(2%0) based on its gross receipts from microfinance operations in lieu of all national
taxes. In 2018 and 2017, the Foundation paid gross receipts tax (GRT) amounting to
P132.8 million and P99.0 million, respectively, [see Note 19(f]. Moreover, income
denved by the Foundation from its properties, real or personal, or from any of its
activities not covered by the exemption or activities conducted for profit regardless of
the disposition made of such income, is subject to income tax.

FUND MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES, POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Foundation's capital management objectives are to generate funds to expand its
microfinance operations by collecting service fees at rates commensurate to the level
of risk, to facilitate the convergence and provision of other social services to the poor,
and to ensure the Foundation’s sustainability to continue as a going concern.

The Foundation monitors funds on the basis of the carrying amount of the fund
balance as presented in the statements of financial position.

The Foundation sets the amount of fund in proportion to its overall financing
structure, 1.e., fund balance and loans from third parties. The Foundation manages the
fund structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the dsk characteristics of the underlying assets.

2018 2017
Total loans from third parties P1,934,000,000 P1,700,000,000
Total fund balance 6,334,635,319 3,648,664,914
Extemal loans-to-fund rato — 031100 0.47:1.00

The Foundation has satisfactorily complied with its covenant obligations related to its
interest-bearing loans as of the end of each reporting periods as discussed in Note 10.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
18.1 Operating Lease Commitments — Foundation as Lessee

The Foundation has operating lease agreements covering various office spaces
occupied by the Foundation and its branches for a period of six months to two years.
The lease agreements require the Foundation to pay rental deposits. Outstanding
rental deposits as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 amounted to P34.6 million and
P27.2 million, respectively, and are shown as Rental Deposits in the statements of
financial position.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, future minimum lease payments under these
non-cancellable operating leases within one year amounted to P165.8 million and
P132.0 million, respectively.
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Rent expense recognized related to these operating leases amounted to P165.8 million
and P132.0 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively, which are allocated to both Project
Costs and General and Administrative Expenses under Expenses section in statements
of comprehensive income (see Note 13).

1582 Others

There are other commitments and contingencies that arise in the normal course of the
Foundation’s operations which are not reflected in the financial statements. As of
December 31, 2018 and 2017, management is of the opinion that losses, if any, that
may arise from these commitments and contingencies will not have a material effect
on the Foundation’s financial statements.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY THE BUREAU OF
INTERNAL REVENUE

Presented below and in the succeeding pages are the supplementary information
which is required by the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR) under its existing revenue
regulations to be disclosed as part of the notes to financial statements, This
supplementary information is not a required disclosure under PFRS. All information
are presented in their absolute amounts.

The information on taxes, duties and license fees paid or accrued during the taxable
year required under Revenue Regulaton No. 15-2010 are as follows:

(a) Omusput Value-added Tax (V.AT)
The Foundation has not incurred any output tax liability for the year ended
December 31, 2018 as it has no revenue transactions subject to VAT
(see Note 16).
(6) Imput VAT
The Foundation did not recognize any input VAT. It records all input VAT on

purchases of goods and services as expense or part of cost of assets since it would
not be recovered from setting-off with any output tax liability in the future.

(¢} Documentary Stamp Tax
The Foundation paid documentary stamp tax (DST) in 2018 amounting to
P4,790,099, which is related to the several loans originated during the year
[see Note 19(f]).

(d) Taxes on Importation

The Foundation did not incur or pay any customs’ duties and tariff fees as it did
not have any importation for the year ended December 31, 2018.



(e) Exdse Tax

The Foundation did not have any transactions in 2018, which are subject to excise
[ax.

() Taxes and licenses

Details of taxes and licenses in 2018 are shown below,

otes
GRT 16 P 132,791,731
Licenses and permits 24,648,373
DST 19¢) 4,790,099
Local taxes 424,758
Real estate taxes 478,792
Other taxes - 807132

E_163,940,885

The amounts of taxes and licenses are allocated and presented in the
2018 statement of comprehensive income as follows (see Note 13):

General and administrative expenses P 139,021,561
Project costs 24919324
P_163940,885

(¢) Withholding Taxes

Details of rotal withholding taxes for the year ended December 31, 2018
are shown below.

Compensation and employee benefits P 23,818,086
Expanded — 29,032,945
P 52851031

The Foundation has no transactions subject to final withholding taxes during the

year.







L

P&A
Grant Thornton

An instinct for growth’

Report of Independent Auditors
tn AGI:HI'I‘I pany suppIEmE“taw 20th Floor, Tawer 1

The Enterprise Center

&766 Ayala Avenue

Information Required by the Philippine ooy
Securities and Exchange Commission
Filed Separately from the Basic

Financial Statements

T +63 29808 2288

The Board of Trustees

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO)
(A Nonstock, Nonprofit Organization)

15" Floor Prestige Tower, F. Ortigas Jr. Street

Ortigas Center, Pasig City

We have audited, in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements
of ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO) for the year ended December 31,
2018, on which we have rendered our report dated February 28, 2019. Our audit was made for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The
Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations Adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and the Financial Reporting Standards Council as of
December 31, 2018 is presented for purposes of additional analysis in compliance with the
requirement under Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, and is not a required part
of the basic financial statements prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards. Such supplementary information is the responsibility of management. The
supplementary information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

PUNONGBAYAN & ARAULLO

By: Ra . Rafiola
Partner

CPA Reg. No. 0080741
TIN 108-228-427
PTR MNo. 7333688, January 3, 2018, Makati City
SEC Group A Accreditation _
Partner - No. 0385-AR-3 (until May 18, 2018)
Firm - No. 0002-FR-5 (until Mar, 26. 2021)
BIR AN 08-002511-19-2018 (until Jan. 25, 2021)
Firm's BOA/FRC Cert. of Reg. No. 0002 (until Jul. 24, 20271)

February 28, 2018

Punongbayan & Araullo

Certified Public Accountants grantthernten.com.ph

Punongbayan & Aroulla is the Philippine member firm of Grant Thornton international Lvd

Offeas In Cavite, Cobu, Dovos
BOAPRC Cart of Reg. No. DOOE
SEC Accraditotion Na. DDOE FR-&



i EERNEENRED

ASA Philippines Foundation, Inc. (A Microfinance NGO)

Schedule of Philippine Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations

Adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission and the
Financisl Reporting Standards Council as of December 31, 2018

PHILIFFINE FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Adepted

Nt

Not
Applicabie

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Firancial Statements

Conceproal Framework Fhase A: Objectives and Qualitative Characreristics

Practice 5

Manage t Commentary

Fhilippine Financial Reporting Stendards (PFRS)

PFRS 1
(Revised)

First-time Adoption of Philppine Financal Reporting Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1: Additions] Exemputons for Forst-bme Adopters

Amendments to PFRS 1: Limited Exempooo from Compamtye PFRS 7 Disclosores for
First-time Adopters

Amendments 1o PFRS 1: Severs Hypeonflstion and Removal of Proed Diate for
First-time Adopies

Amendments o0 PFRS 1: Government Loans

Amendments to PFRS 1: Deleacn of Shost-term Exemptons

Y T T e

FFRS 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2; Vesting Conditions and Canceliations

Amendments to FFRS 2! Group Cash-serded Shase-based Payment Transsctons

Amendments to PFRS 2 Clasaficaton and Messorement of Share-based Payment Trancactions

PFRSE 3
(Revised)
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Amendment o FFRS 3: Remessurernent of Previously Held Interests in & Joint Operation fifectes
amuary I, 2019}

PFRS 4

Insurance Contraces

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 4 Financisl Guaranoee Contracts

Amendments 1o PFRS 4 Applyang PFRS 9, Fraswas/ lIecruments, with PFRE 4, Jesrene Contracts

FFRE 5

MNoo-current Assers Held fior Sale and Discontinued Operations

|FFRS &

Explorancn for and Evaluaton of Mineral Resources
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PFRS 7

Finaneial Instruments: Disclngures

Amendments to FFRE T; Transition

| Areadments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclissificaton of Financial Assets

Amendments 1o PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial Assets - Effective Date and
Treniton

| Amendments to FFRE T: Improving Disclosures shout Financal Instruments

| Amendmenta to PFRS 7: Disclosures — T ransfers of Financal Assets

Amendments o FFRS 7: Dischosures — Offserting Finsncial Assets and Finanoal Lisbilises
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| Arnendments w0 PFRS 7: Mandatory Effectve Dt of PFRS © and Transition Discloguses

by

PFRE &

Operating Segments

~

PFRS 9

[Financisl Instruments (2014)

| Amendments m FFRS % Prepayment Features with Negative Compensaton®
[effective Jammary T, 2015)

PFRS 10

Consolidated Financial Statements

Amendments o FFRE 10t Transiton Guidance

| Arnendments o PFRS 10: Investroenr Entites

Amendments to PFRS 10 fale ar Contdbuticn of Assets berween an Iovestor and it Assocame or

Joint Veanare (ifectior datr dgfermd mdefonitely)

Amendments o PFRS 10: Invesmment Enoties — Applying the Consclidation Excepton

FFRS 11

[Joint Arrangements

Amendments to PFRS 11: Transiton Guidance

| Amendments m PFRS 11: Accounting for Acguisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

Amendment 1 PFRS 11: Remessorement of Previously Held Interests in 9 joint Operstion (gfete
amuzry 1, 2018
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PERS 12 L Amendments to FFRS 12: Transton Guideoce <
Arnendments to FFRS 12- Investment Entites s
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PFRS 13 Fair Valos Messurernent v
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts <
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PFRS 16 Leases” (gfictme Jamuary !, 2015) <
PFRS 17 Insurance Contracts (gfectiie Jamuary 1. 2621) I
Phibppine Accounting Standards (FAS)
FPresentation of Financial Statements s
— iﬂmww?ﬂ.’i 32 and PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligutions Adsing oo »
(Revised) -
Amendments 1 PAS 1: Presenmation of lems of Other Comprehensive Income v
Amendments o PAS 1: Discloswure Initatiee o
PAS 2 Inventodes s
A Statement of Cach Fiows s
Amendments o PAS 7: Disclosuse Indnative v
PAS B Accoenting Policies, Changes in Accounting Ertimates and Ermoge v
PAS 10 Events Afier the Reporing Feriod /s
Income Taxes v
pas 2 Amendments 1 PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assers W,
L Amendments o PAS 12 - Hecogninon of Deferred Tax Assers for Unreafized Losses v
Amendment to FAS 12 - Tax Consequences of Dividends fefecwe Jassary 7. 2075) 7
Feopesty, Flant and Equipment v
IPAS 15 Amendments 10 FAS 16 Bearer Plants** o«
Amendments to PAS 16 Clanfcaton of Acceptabls Methods of Deprecaton and Amortiraton 4
|PAS I7 Leuscs '
PAS 19 Employece Benefit: 4
(Revieed) |4 mendments to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans - Employes Contobutions s
PAS 20 Accountng for Govesnment Grants and Disclorere of (Government Assistance s
P The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates " i
Amendments! MNet Investment in & Foreign Crperstion -«
e Borsoeng Costs v
e | Eligihiliry for Capitalization v
m Related Party Disclosures v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans v
Separate Finencial Statements s
P!ﬂ 21' g Amendments to PAS 27- Investment Entties 4
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financisl Statements L
Investments in Assocatcs and Joint Vennures v
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PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hypednflabonary Economies s
Franoal Instroments: Presentation s
Amendenents w PAS 32 snd PAS 1: Pottable Financial Instruments and Cbligeuons Adsing on
i FRFTAR ¢
Amendments o PAS 32 Classification of Rights Isoes 7
Amendments to PAS 32. Offsecting Firancial Asse and Financial Liabdlines v
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PAS 33 Famings Per Share s
PAS 34 Interirn. Financial Heporting o
t of Assets
PAS 36 Impairmen o+
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PAS 17 Provisions, Contingent Liahilities and Continpent Assets "
Intangble Aty
PAS 38
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Fimncial Instruments: Recogrition and Messarement "4
Amendmente to PAS 3% Transinon and Inidal Recogniton of Financial Aseets and Finaoceal
Liabilities i
|Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactons -3
Amendeaents 1w PAS 3%: The Fair Value Option ** v
PAS 30 Amendments 1o PAS 39 and FFRS 4: Financial Guerineee Contracts M
Amendments o FAS 39 and FFRS T: Reclassificanon of Financial Assets 4
Amendments o PAS 39 and PFRS T: Reclassification of Financial Assets — Effective Date and
Meansition v
Amendments to Philippine Interpresation IFRIC 9 and FAS 3% Embedded Deovanves*® 4
Amendments to PAS 39 Ehgihle Hedpged Inems™= "4
Amendments to PAS 39: Novaton of Dedvatves and Continvaton of Hedge Accounting®™ v
PAS #0 Investment Propery «
Amendment to PAS 40: Reclassification m and from Investment Propeny v
icualture
PAS 41 e 4
 Amendments to PAS 41: Bearer Flants o
Fhilippine Interpretations - Internatiopal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (TFRIC)
IEFHIE 1 Changes in Bxisting Decommissioning, Restoration end Simdler Lishdlises "
IIFRH.‘ 2 Members' Share in Co-operative Entrties and Sirmler Instruments «
EIFEIC 4 Determining Whether 20 Armngement Contains o Lease o
Rights to Interests Ansing from Umﬁ.@w@ﬂﬂ&wmm
IFRIC 5 4
|Funds
Linkilites Agmng from Partcpatng m a Specfic Marke: - Waswe Eleccal and Electronic
IFRIC & ! s
Egquipment
IFRIC 7 Apphing the Restmtement Approach under PAS 29, Financial Reportiog in Hypernflationary s
Economics
—— Reassesement of Embedded Deovatves™ '
| Amendments t0 Philippine Interpretation [FRIC-% and PAS 3%: Embedded Dedvazives™® t‘
IFRIC 10 Interim Firnncial Reporting and Ieypairment L
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Armangements v
FAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asser, Minimum Funding Requisements and their o
IFRICI  foeoon
Amendments m Phifppine Interpretations IFRIC - 14, Prepayments of @ Minimom Fundeng P
Requirement and their Interacton™?
IFRIC 16 Hedges of & Net Investment in 2 Foragn Operstion v
IFRIC 17 Drstobustons of Non-cash Assets to Cramers g
1FRIC 19 Exongpuishing Financial Lishilines with Equity Instruments™ '
IFRIC 20  [Stdpping Cosw in the Production Phase of 2 Surface Mine <
IFRIC 21 Levies b
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Philippine Taterpretations - Standing Interpreaativas Committee (SIC)

SIC-7 Introducton of the Ewrn +
S1C-10 Government Asgstnce - No Specific Relation to Operating Actvibes v
SIC-13 Jointly Controlied Entitice - Non-Monetary Conteibutions by Vennarers s
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